
MEMORANDUM 

TO: Town Council  

FROM: David E. Cox, Town Manager  

DATE: November 18, 2021 

SUBJECT: Agenda Information – 11/23/2021 

The following is additional or summary information regarding matters on the upcoming Town Council 
Agenda.  The numbering below follows the agenda and some routine or self-explanatory items are not 
discussed in this memo.  As you review your packet materials, please do not hesitate to contact the 
appropriate staff member or me prior to the Council meeting with any questions or concerns.  Often, 
these conversations can help staff and me be prepared for the Council meeting and be ready to facilitate 
a more productive and efficient meeting for everyone.  

7 Resolutions/Ordinances/Policies/Proclamations 
7a Consideration of the FY 2022-2023 Budget Policy Statement – The Council is being presented 
with a proposed Budget Policy statement developed by its Budget Policy subcommittee.  Once 
approved, the statement is used to guide budget development by staff for the Town and Board of 
Education and by the Board of Finance and the Town Council during the preliminary approval process 
prior to Town referendum. 

9 New Business 
9a Discussion regarding the chair of the Inland Wetlands Watercourses Agency – The Town 
Council will be considering recent and past conduct of the chair of the IWWA to determine whether his 
continued service is appropriate. 

9b Consideration of a proposed Parks and Recreation Department community survey – As part of 
continued work on the Department’s Needs Assessment, staff and the consultant have developed and 
are proposing a community-wide survey to help assess what improvements should be made to parks 
and recreational services.  The survey was developed after preliminary input was received through focus 
groups, stakeholder meetings and community forums and is intended to solicit input from a broader 
cross-section of the community.  The results will help shape future park and facility development activity 
as well as future recreation programming.  A draft of the survey is included in the agenda packet with 
notes as to revisions that are being made.  A revised version of the survey will be distributed in the 
upcoming days prior to the meeting and will be added to the agenda material on the Town website. 

Recommendation:  Approve the survey for distribution to the community. 

9c Consideration of amendments to the Fire Department Awards Program – The Council is asked 
to approve updates and modifications to the existing Fire Department Awards Program as 



Town Council - Agenda Information – 11/23/2021 
November 18, 2021 
Page 2 

recommended by the Board of Fire Commissioners.  One change has a very minor financial impact and 
calls for an additional $50 recognition of the individual serving as the Department’s Public Information 
Officer.  The other changes are administrative changes that correct the rank order and related award 
amount for the Deputy Chief and Assistant Chief positions, which were incorrectly listed previously. 

Recommendation:  Approve the amendments. 

11 Appointments 
11a Appointment to the Board of Finance – A vacancy was created on the Board of Finance when 
former member Eric Peterson was elected to the Town Council and sworn in on November 3, 2021.  In 
accordance with State Law, the Council is responsible for making an appointment to fulfil the balance of 
the original term until 2023 and the appointment must be of the same political party of the previous 
incumbent.  Mr. Peterson is registered as a Republican.  The East Hampton Republican Town Committee 
has nominated Deborah Cunningham to fill the vacancy.  Ms. Cunningham was elected to the Board of 
Assessment Appeals at the most recent election, but that position does not impact her ability to serve 
on the Board of Finance. 

The remainder of the items are of a routine nature, in the sole purview of the Council or are 
announcements.  Please contact me or the appropriate staff member with questions or concerns. 



Town Council Regular Meeting 1 11/9/2021 Minutes 

Town of East Hampton 
Town Council Regular Meeting 

Tuesday, November 9, 2021 
Town Hall Council Chambers and Zoom 

MINUTES 

Present: Chairman Mark Philhower, Vice Chairman Tim Feegel, Council Members Pete Brown, 
Brandon Goff, Eric Peterson, Kevin Reich and Alison Walck and Town Manager David Cox 

Call to Order & Pledge of Allegiance 
Chairman Philhower called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. in the Town Hall Council Chambers 
and via Zoom. 

Adoption of Agenda 
A motion was made by Ms. Walck, seconded by Mr. Feegel, to adopt the agenda as presented. 
Voted (7-0) 

Approval of Minutes 
A motion was made by Mr. Feegel, seconded by Mr. Reich, to approve the minutes of the Town 
Regular Meeting of October 26, 2021 as written.  Voted (4-0-3) Mr. Goff, Mr. Peterson and Ms. 
Walck abstained as they were not on the Council at that time. 

A motion was made by Mr. Feegel, seconded by Mr. Reich, to approve the minutes of the Town 
Council Organizational Meeting of November 3, 2021 as written.  Voted (7-0) 

Public Remarks 
None 

Presentations 
None 

Bids & Contracts 
None 

Resolution/ Ordinances/ Policies/ Proclamation 
Review Ordinance Change for EDC Mission Statement/Set Public Hearing 
At a prior meeting, the Economic Development Commission presented a mission statement for their 
Commission.  An ordinance has now been drafted that will incorporate the purpose and mission 
into the Town Code.  The next step will be a Public Hearing on the ordinance change. 

A motion was made by Mr. Brown, seconded by Mr. Reich, to set a Public Hearing at the start of 
the December 14, 2021 regular meeting.  Voted (7-0) 

Continued Business 
Sub-Committee Reports & Updates 
Mr. Feegel reported that he and Mr. Brown will be meeting with Mr. Cox regarding the water project 
on Wednesday.  

Agenda Item 3a



 
Town Council Regular Meeting  2 11/9/2021 Minutes  

 
Mr. Reich reported that the High School Athletic Field Building Committee met last week, and the 
project is moving ahead on schedule.  They will be laying down the sod soon. 
 
Consideration of a Bid Waiver Request from the Board of Education for a 1-Year Extension 
of the Bus Contract 
Superintendent of Schools Paul Smith provided an overview of the bid waiver request for the new 
members. 
 
A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Goff, to waive the Town Code bidding 
requirements to allow a maximum 1-year extension of the bus contract as presented.  Voted (7-0) 
 
New Business 
Approval of 2022 Meeting Dates 
A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Ms. Walck, to approve the 2022 Meeting Dates as 
presented.  Voted (7-0) 
 
Town Manager Report 
Mr. Cox provided an overview of his written report which will be included with the minutes filed 
in the Town Clerk’s Office.  In addition to the written report, Mr. Cox reported that the Commission 
on Aging survey has come to a close and they will be doing a presentation to Council in December.   
 
Parks & Recreation has been working on an assessment for their department.  They will be bringing 
a survey to be approved by the Council. 
 
The lake has been lowered approximately 33” inches.  The boat launch replacement will be 
completed, and some residents are working on sea walls. 
 
Mr. Goff asked about Ardo’s ACL surgery and what caused the injury.  The Chief indicated the 
cause could not be pinpointed. He also asked if the wells at 13 Watrous are filled in and is the grant 
closed?  Mr. Cox indicated the paperwork to close the grant is being done this week. 
 
Mr. Peterson asked about the inventory at the Food Bank.  Mr. Cox has not received any requests 
for assistance at this point. 
 
Mr. Cox also noted the aeration is being turned off this week in the lake. 
 
Appointments 
Sub-Committee Appointments: 
Appointments 
 Brandon Goff, Chair 
 Mark Philhower 
 Kevin Reich  

 
Personnel 
 Tim Feegel, Chair 
 Pete Brown 
 Mark Philhower 



 
Town Council Regular Meeting  3 11/9/2021 Minutes  

 
Budget Policy 
 Brandon Goff, Chair 
 Kevin Reich 
 Alison Walck  

 
By-Laws 
 None at this time 

 
American Rescue Plan (ARP) 
 Pete Brown, Chair 
 Tim Feegel 
 Mark Philhower  

 
Water 
 Pete Brown, Chair 
 Tim Feegel 
 Brandon Goff  

 
Capital Improvement Committee 
 Tim Feegel 
 Mark Philhower  

 
High School Athletic Field Committee 
 Kevin Reich  

 
Summit Thread RFP Committee 
 Brandon Goff 

 
Liaisons 
Board of Finance – Alison Walck 
Board of Education – Brandon Goff 
Economic Development Commission – Brandon Goff 
Conservation Lake Commission – Kevin Reich 
Fire Commission – Eric Peterson 
Brownfields Redevelopment Agency – Mark Philhower 
Planning & Zoning & IWWA – Mark Philhower 
Parks & Recreation Advisory Board – Tim Feegel 
Housing Authority – Alison Walck 
 
Tax Refunds 
None 
 
Public Remarks 
None 
 
 
 



 
Town Council Regular Meeting  4 11/9/2021 Minutes  

Communications, Correspondence & Announcement  
October 2021 Board & Commission Summary 
Council members received the October 2021 Board and Commission Summary. The document will 
be included with the minutes filed in the Town Clerk’s Office. 
 
Adjournment 
A motion was made by Mr. Reich, seconded by Mr. Brown, to adjourn the meeting at 6:52pm.  
Voted (7-0) 
 
Respectfully Submitted, 
 
 
Cathy Sirois 
Recording Clerk 
 



TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON 
FISCAL YEAR 2022-2023 

Town Council Budget Policy Statement 

CHARTER - GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES 

As specified in Section 2.4 of the Town of East Hampton Charter: "each year the council shall submit 
to the Board of Finance a policy statement outlining its annual budget goals and objectives for the 
ensuing fiscal year." 

OBJECTIVE 

The objective of this budget policy statement is to provide guidance from the Town Council to the 
Board of Finance during the creation and implementation of the annual Town of East Hampton Budget. 
Although not specifically named in the Charter, the intent of this Budget Policy Statement is to also 
provide guidance to the Town Manager and the Board of Education who are charged with proposing 
and presenting respective general government and education budget recommendations to the Board of 
Finance. 

GENERAL STATEMENT 

The Town of East Hampton's annual budget should consider the needs of our community and 
reflect the taxpayer's ability to pay for those needs. 

GUIDELINES 

• Include taxpayers in the budget process as early as possible utilizing Tri-Board meeting(s),
public hearings, Zoom meetings, our Town website, local newspaper, town notices, Citizens
Guide to Budget and meetings.

• The budgets presented should reflect the guidelines presented herein as well as projected
available revenue, anticipated State funding shortfalls and potential impact of current economic
conditions including special grants to augment COVID-19 pandemic costs.

• The Town Manager and the Board of Education will present their respective budgets at a Town
Forum.  Their budgets must include all proposed spending presented in a format that is easily
read and understood by our citizens.

• The Town Manager's budget will incorporate the recommendations of the Capital Committee
composed of representatives of the Town Council and Boards of Finance and Education.

2022-2023 BUDGET GOALS & FUTURE PLANNING 

• The fund balance shall NOT be used to lower the annual mill rate or pay for Town operating
expenses, except if the fund balance exceeds an amount above generally recognized stable
municipal budget parameters.

Agenda Item 7a



• The town should strive to maintain its “AAA” bond rating which includes maintenance of fund
balance at levels generally recognized under stable municipal budget parameters.

• Any new personnel requests must be quantifiably justified.
• The Public Works budget should include a plan to continue ongoing road repairs, sidewalks,

tree removal, equipment maintenance, lake watershed protections and road improvements.
• General Government and the Board of Education should make every effort to only limit budget

increases to meet contractual obligations.
• Maintain and enhance the school district accreditation.
• Enhance the quality and competitiveness of our students, including adequate investment in

technologies.
• Maintain emergency communications equipment between all departments.
• The Capital Committee should update the Town's long-term Capital Improvement Plan to ensure

the future financial discipline and funding stability of the Town.
• Conservatively estimate state revenues to be prepared for changes or shortfalls in tax collection

rates and state funding.
• Support investment in new technologies, updates to IT security and improvements for enhanced

fiscal and network controls. Such costs will be appropriated from operating, not capital, budgets.
• Funding should address ongoing town facility needs.
• The budget shall include funding to enhance economic development and grand list growth

consistent with the character of the Town and quantifiably justified.

• The Council for its part, will:
◦ Seek out cost savings by pursuing regional sharing of services.
◦ Identify and implement opportunities to "share" services between and among Town

departments and the Board of Education
◦ Support the ongoing implementation of those elements from the Lake Pocotopaug 9 Point

Plan that will preserve and improve the condition of the lake and its watershed.
◦ Aggressively pursue grants to fund the Lake Pocotopaug 9 Point Plan.
◦ Continue to support the Town Manager's labor negotiation efforts to realize efficiencies and

savings for taxpayers.
◦ Ensure our Public Library, social services and programs for seniors are adequately funded.
◦ Provide continued support of public safety services, training and equipment.
◦ Strive to replenish our mill rate stabilization fund from available operating surpluses.
◦ Continue to support programs and efforts to help those addicted to opioids.
◦ Continue efforts that maintain and plan for the redevelopment or, if in the best Town’s best

interest, the sale of excess Town owned facilities.
◦ Ensure that the Federal American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds be used for one-time

expenses in accordance with Federal guidelines and not ongoing expenses or personnel.

Modified by Budget Policy Sub-Committee on November 15, 2021 



DRAFT 11/18/21Agenda Item 9b







This question will be
replaced with something
similar to question #6









User-related fees will be
added as an option and
the sales tax is being
reviewed as to whether it
could really be done.







Proposed Revision 
11-23-2021 

Town of East Hampton 
Volunteer Firefighter’s Award Program 

Annual Minimum Requirements 

Schedule A 

Responses Minimum 15% then tiered 

Department Drills 1/3 

Company Drills  1/3 

Meetings  1/2 

Work Details  1/3 

Notes: 

1. Certificate training is also applied to company and department drill attendance

2. Chief, Deputy Chief and Assistant Chief are not required to attend company
drills, meetings or work detail 

Award Tiers: 

15% Responses:  $350 

22% Responses  $500 

30% Responses  $750 

Amended November 2021 

Agenda Item 9c



Proposed Revision 
11-23-2021 

Schedule C 
East Hampton Fire Department Awards Program 

Bonus Positions and Amount 

Position Bonus Amount 

Chief $250 
Deputy Chief $240 
Assistant Chief $215 
Department Secretary $75 
Department Engineer $175 
Training Officer $125 
Assistant Training Officer $65 
Fire Police Captain $65 
Fire Police Lieutenant $45 
Fire Prevention and Education $65 
Fire Prevention and Education $65 
Public Information Officer $50 

Captain Company #1 $200 
Captain Company #2 $200 
1st Lieutenant Company #1 $125 
2nd Lieutenant Company #1 $125 
3rd Lieutenant Company #1 $125 
1st Lieutenant Company # 2 $125 
1st Lieutenant Company #2 $125 
1st Lieutenant Company #2 $125 
Assistant Engineer Company #1 $75 
Assistant Engineer Company #1 $75 
Assistant Engineer Company #2 $75 
Assistant Engineer Company #2 $75 
Secretary/Treasurer Company #1 $75 
Secretary/Treasurer Company #2 $75 
Junior Advisor $65 
Junior Advisor $65 
Junior Advisor $65 
Junior Advisor $65 
Executive Board Company #1 $100 
Executive Board Company #1 $100 
Executive Board Company #1 $100 
Executive Board Company #2 $100 
Executive Board Company #2 $100 
Executive Board Company #2 $100 
Safety Officer $75 
Radio Communication Officer $75 













































































Amendment 5

Schedule C



Agenda Item 12



East Hampton / Portland Electric Car Show ’21 

A Big Success

Report to the East Hampton Town Council 

Lorry Belanger, co-chair of the Electric Car Show ’21, and member of the East Hampton Clean Energy 
Task Force directs visitors and answers questions. Photo by Roz Kaplan 

Agenda Item 14a



 
 

East Hampton / Portland Electric Car Show ’21 Report 
 
 

A VERY SUCCESSFUL CAR SHOW 

 

On Saturday, September 25, 2021, approximately 250 participants and spectators 
visited the East Hampton High School parking lot for the third annual electric car 
show sponsored by the East Hampton and Portland Clean Energy Task Forces. 

There were dozens of show cars, three dealerships, and two solar contractors that 
came out to promote the future of clean, safe and efficient transportation. 

Our town show was part of the National Drive Electric Week program that occurs 
every Fall, and has a countrywide focus. 

The message from participants and exhibitors was clear:  They love their clean and 
quiet “rides”, and were pleased to see this event in our town. 

 

 

 

Visitors to the 2021 Electric Car Show looking at the more than 25 electric and hybrid vehicles on 
display at the East Hampton High School parking lot.  Photo by Roz Kaplan 

 
 



 
East Hampton / Portland Electric Car Show ’21 Report 

 
 

A TOWN WIDE EFFORT 

 
The ’21 Electric Car show was sponsored and organized by the East Hampton 
Clean Energy Task Force, a volunteer Task Force established by Town Council 
resolution.  The Portland Clean Energy Task Force also participated and promoted 
the event. 
 
The success of the event was the result of a town-wide effort that helped make this 
event run smoothly.   
 
The Town Manager’s Office provided financial support and we were able to 
finance this event with less than $1,000 of town funds to promote and manage an 
event with a national profile.   Local volunteers contributed hundreds of hours. 
 
The Parks and Recreation Department advertised and provided a vehicle for 
participation and sign up.  Our High School Principal authorized the use of a 
perfect venue for this outdoor event and made us all welcome. 
 
Local businesses said, “YES”, when asked to allow the event to be advertized and 
promoted on their premises.   
 
The Police Department and the Town Fire Marshall helped make sure the event 
was safe and consistent with town protocols.  Several Town Council members 
came out in support. 
 
And our residents turned out.  Three times as many as at the last car show 
 
  



 
East Hampton / Portland Electric Car Show ’21 Report 

 

 

 

EAST HAMPTON IS LOOKING TO THE ENERGY FUTURE 

 
An Annual Electric Vehicle Show is an event that only a few towns can point to, 
and most are much larger than East Hampton, CT.  It helps put our small town in 
pretty heady company. 
 
 
 
What does it mean for our town? 
 

 Publicity that East Hampton is forward looking; 
 

 East Hampton is on the national stage; 
 

 Our town government is committed to sustainable future growth;  
 

 A place that sees itself as part of the solution to our energy and 
environmental problems; 
  

 An invitation to come live and work in a town committed to 
improving livability. 
 

 
 

 

 

  



 

East Hampton / Portland Electric Car Show ’21 Report 
 

 

 
 

This future driver has the right idea.  Photo by Roz Kaplan 

 
 
An electric vehicle show can’t do all those things by itself, but it is an effective and 
relatively easy way to convey the message that we are serious about moving to a 
better future. 
 
 
 
 
Submitted Nov. 15, 2021 by the East Hampton Clean energy Task Force:  Kye 
Amtmanis, chairperson, Martin Podskoch, Lorry Belanger, Paul Wisniewski, 
Darin Aloia, Russ Kaplan. 
 




